2.  (CT/TT) SOW, RFP Definition of Terms, Section B

Currently "Onsite" is defined as performance at a Government facility and "Offsite' is defined as performance at other than a Government facility. Typically most Contractor rate structures define "Onsite" as performance at the contractor’s facility and "Offsite" as performance at other than the contractor’s facility. In order to allow more flexibility in pricing, avoid confusion, and ultimately reduce the price for the Government, suggest review of the definition of Onsite and Offsite.

Answer:  We will change these definitions to read:

On – site:  Performance at the contractor’s facility.

Off – site:  Performance at a facility other than the contractor’s.

6.  (CT) H-905 a, b, c 

Paragraph c as currently written allows a small business prime’s status to remain as reported on the date of contract award until completion of the final delivery/task order issued under this contract.  Recommend adding this statement to paragraphs “a” and “b” to allow the status of a small business subcontractor to remain as reported on the date of contract award as well.

Answer:  We do not agree to incorporate this language regarding small business subcontractors (see FAR 19.701 which defines a small business subcontractor).  

19.  (TT) L-903 / 4.4a Please clarify how the Team Structure Matrix presented in Table 4.4 should be used to demonstrate how the team composition supports the FAST Statement of Work (SOW).  The areas in the table do not map directly into the SOW contract tasks.  General areas such as Quality Assurance and Configuration Management are applicable to all contract tasks.  It is not clear what information is desired in each table entry, e.g., the Manufacture Area in Manpower Services.  Suggest using the SOW contract tasks under Systems Engineering and Logistics Support in the vertical axis of Table 4.4.

Answer:  We do not concur.  The Section L instructions provide directions to address the broad scope of the FAST Statement of Work.

30.  (TT) Reference:  Section L, Paragraph 4.3, Sample Tasks

Question:  

How are questions/requests for clarification pertaining to sample task orders to be submitted?

Answer:  The Offeror shall provide a technical and management approach with supporting rationale and assumptions to meet the requirements of each sample task.   The solutions shall be based upon the FAST Statement of Work, Subfactors 1 and 2, and the requirements set forth in each sample task.   The Offeror will make assumptions based on the sample tasks as presented, and the Offeror’s proposal should be based on the Offeror’s assumptions.  The Government will not accept questions from prospective Offerors regarding sample tasks during proposal preparation. 

52.b.  (PRIC)  5.2.3 b. (1) b.  SCA Wage Determinations are incorporated…. 

Are escalation rates in 5.2.3.b. (1) only for non SCA rates? 

We presume that annual price adjustments will be provided for SCA rates per the FLSA and SCA Price Adjustment Clause. 

Answer: Rates in the offerors' proposals should be escalated for all labor categories (including SCA rates) for all 5 years.  Wage Determinations will be updated on an annual basis in accordance with FAR 22.  Wording will be revised in the Final RFP.

55.  (PRIC) Ref: L-903, Para 5.3.1 Estimating / Purchasing / Accounting Systems - Prime Offerors and each of its Subcontractors shall provide a summary statement to include adequacy and approval of these systems as determined by the cognizant Administrative Contracting Officer or some other Government agency.  

a.  Does this requirement apply to Small Business subcontractors?

Answer:  Yes, if applicable IAW with 48 CFR Part 9903.  The dollar amount of contracts awarded in a year determines if a contractor is subject to Cost Accounting Standards.   

59.  (LEGAL)  

On page two of the solicitation states that FAST is the sustainment of all Air Force managed weapon systems, support systems, subsystems, and components.  It further states that the Statement of Work is generic in nature and describes general support requirements.  The work statement is so vague and comprehensive with coverage required virtually anywhere in the world, that it is a violation of the statutory and regulatory limits of 10 USC 2304(a)(1), 10 USC 2305(a), and 10 USC 2304a(b)(3).

Answer:  Do not agree. The FAST requirements are clearly defined as services, mods, spares, and repairs applicable to Air Force managed weapon systems.  Spares and repairs are furthered defined as critical, limited, and contingency.  FAST will not include MILCON, BOS (Base Operating Support), Civil Engineering, and new developments.

60.  (LEGAL / CT)  

We take exception to the failure to include a requirement for a percentage of work to be performed by the small businesses that are awarded prime contracts under the “reserved” portion.  There is nothing in the FAR which covers work “reserved” for small business; only total and partial; set-asides can be found.  We therefore question the legality of your method for reserving awards in lieu of set-asides.  FAST is not in compliance with the requirement at FAR 19.502-2 as pertains to set-asides and the reasonable expectation of offers from two small business sources and award at reasonable prices?  If the “rule of two” is met, the entire requirement should be set-aside.  If it is not, then your “reservation” of two awards for small business with no “limitations on subcontracting” is not recognized in FAR.

Answer: The intent to reserve 2 basic awards for small business is designed to assist small business, whether or not such reservation is recognized in the FAR.  This approach is not precluded by the FAR.

71. (CT / PRIC) On-site areas for pricing include:

CONUS

Germany

Western Europe

United Kingdom

Middle East

Mediterranean Region

Central / South America

Far East

Hawaii

Alaska

With FMS requirements capable of being purchased under this contract, above pricing structure would have to be required.  Breakout of Germany and United Kingdom from Western Europe may indicate strong requirement possibilities from those areas.  Are there Government guidelines for pricing non-CONUS activities?

Answer:  The OCONUS areas for pricing were based upon industry input.  We are unaware of any Government guidelines for pricing non-CONUS activities.  

86.  (TT) Labor categories - General: 

The listing, without explanation, of the three levels of experience at the top of the attachment and again at the heading of the Engineering portion is unclear in its intent.  If it is meant that each and every labor category has three levels of experience and therefore rate structures, as appears to be the case, then the following apply:

(1) That definition should be clearly stated.

(2) Shredding each of the already too numerous categories into three segmented rates is further credence that there are far too many potential rates.

(3) The Engineering portion requires that all persons who may perform under that heading must possess an Engineer In Training (EIT) Certificate.  It is doubted that any but a very small percentage of the practicing engineers in the current industrial pool possess a current certificate, including the cognizant ALC engineers.  This requirement should be dropped unless justified by the peculiar circumstances of a particular D/TO.

(4) There is no mention of the categories normally associated with ALC logistics support and to which most services tasks not specifically engineering in nature will refer.  Those tasks of an Equipment Specialist, Item Manager, Production Manager, and Logistics Program Manager are not contained in any of the stated categories.     

Answer:  The three levels identified at the top of page 1 of the attachment, Labor Category Descriptions (Atch 4) will be deleted.  The three levels of experience at the heading of the Engineering section will remain.  The variety and qualification levels associated with the labor categories have been formulated based on the Government’s best estimation of the expected D / TOs in conjunction with the FAST SOW.  EIT certificates are not required for engineering degreed personnel.  To be classified as an engineer, EIT certificates are required for personnel with a mathematics / physical science bachelor’s degree.  The “Logistician” labor category covers many of the ALC logistics support activities.  These tasks are within the scope of FAST.  

86.  (TT) Reference the Statement of Work Draft Revision 11 Dated 18 May 00:

a. Para 2.0: The requirement calls for the most current CALS standard published at the time of award of each Delivery/Task Order to be the required standard for performance.

It has often been the case that the latest and newest published requirements are not compatible with customer ALC acceptance capability.  This problem can be seen in viewing the diversity of ALC IDE capabilities and standard processes and systems currently being applied as indicated in Appendix B of the SOW.  We suggest, therefore, that the statement be revised to indicate that the latest published standards will apply “unless specified otherwise in the D/TO.”

Answer: Concur.  

97.  (TT/CT/PRIC) Reference: Schedule B, Various Non-CONUS CLINS (e.g. X001AB through X001AK).

For these CLINs we assume that it is the Government’s intention that services would be provided by employees permanently assigned to such areas, as opposed to where the work is performed.  

Answer:  It is not the Government’s intent to define an offeror’s approach in response to an RFOP.  

For instance an employee permanently assigned to a CONUS location could be sent on a TDY basis to a non-CONUS work location. In this instance we assume the billing rate would be the CONUS rate (plus travel and living expense). Is this assumption correct?

Answer:  Yes.  Pay is calculated with the CONUS rate adjusted by the applicable add-on factor.  (Note:  Temporary Duties are not to exceed 180 days.)  

a) In addition, we could not locate a Government provided definition of the countries included within certain of these CLINS. Will the Government provide such definition?

Answer:  The RFOP will designate the country / area in which performance is to occur.  

100.  (TT) Reference: Solicitation Section L-903, Paragraph 4.5 and Page 74, Paragraph 6.0, Page 70

Paragraph 4 provides instructions for Volume I – Mission Capability. It appears that Paragraph 4.5 is misnumbered and misplaced as it states that it relates to Volume III – Offeror / Proposal Contract Documentation which is treated in Paragraph 6.0. Please confirm that offerors should address Subfactor 4, Small Business / Small Disadvantage Business Strategy in their Volume III.

Answer:  Subcontracting Plan is submitted as a part of Volume III.  Addendums are submitted as a part of Volume I.   

102.  (TT) Section H-906.e, Attachment 1, the SOW, at Paragraph 3.1.5.a 

References the DD Form 254. Paragraph 3.1.5.i anticipates security clearance requirements up to and including TOP SECRET/SCI. Attachment 2, the DD Form 254 indicates in blocks 1.a and 1.b that only a SECRET facility clearance and level of safeguarding are required. Please clarify this requirement.

Answer:  The DD Form 254 refers to the storage of classified data at the contractor’s facility.  The SOW reference to security clearance requirements up to and including TS/SCI refers to data that contractor personnel may view as required by a specific delivery/task order.  Clause H-906 e. will be revised.
111.  (PRIC) Reference: Section M, paragraph 2.4(2), page 83

 “Failure to utilize the rates and / or factors proposed in the attached Rate Tables in the pricing of the sample tasks will result in an Offeror being rejected and disqualified for award.”

And Section L, paragraph 5.2.5, page 73.

Within the referenced paragraph: 

“NOTE: For evaluation purposes, all sample tasks will incorporate the MACON, GA Wage Determination #94-2139, Revision 17, dated Aug 99 (Atch (8a).”

Further general reference is made to the Rate Tables provided by the Government with the draft RFP. These tables include one area per year (plus on and off site) for pricing nonexempt labor categories. There are no subdivisions by geographic areas that equate to the 3 Wage Determinations provided by the Government.

After reviewing the 2 specific references noted above, along with the rate tables provided, we assume the following.

a) We have assumed that all non-exempt labor categories included within the RFP should be priced by bidders using the Macon, GA. Wage Determination only as the minimum basis for salary and benefit cost through the entire rate table.  

Answer:  The Macon GA Wage Determination will be used in evaluation as a minimum for those labor categories that are covered by Service Contract Act.  In addition, these rates will also be evaluated for reasonableness in accordance with Clause M-901, paragraph 2.4.    

b) We have assumed that the remaining 2 Wage Determinations would be used at a later point for the pricing of specific tasks to be performed within those geographic areas.   

Answer:  This is correct.  At this time, wage determinations are included only for the OO-ALC, OC-ALC, and WR-ALC areas; however performance under FAST is not limited to these areas.  Those RFOPs which identify work to be performed that is covered by the Service Contract Act outside of these three areas will include the Wage Determination which is applicable to that area.  

If these assumptions are not in agreement with the intentions of the Government, please advise.

Answer:  Assumptions are correct. The rates in the contract will be not to exceed rates.  Rates subject to the Service Contract Act will be increased only when it is necessary for the rate to comply with a Wage Determination.

127.  (CT) Clause H-908 (b)

There will be many, if not most, orders that will be proposed and assigned to a single subcontractor, with the prime only having administrative responsibilities for submitting a subcontractor’s proposal.  It is highly recommended that subcontractors also be allowed to determine appropriateness, communicate with AF depots and negotiate arrangements to use resources.  If a large business subcontractor desires to partner with the Government, what is the procedure?

Answer:  Clause H-908(b) will remain as written.  Contact the XP offices at the ALCs for further information regarding partnering. 

164.  (TT) Page 68, L-903, 4.2.9 

This paragraph states that a representative shall not attend more than one (1) Offeror’s oral presentation, pop quiz and Q&A session.  In the instance where a contractor is a teammember on a team primed by a large business Offeror, and also a teammember on a team primed by a small business Offeror, are they restricted to attendance on only one Offeror’s presentation. 

Answer:  Yes this is correct for the oral presentation and Q & A session.  Due to concerns raised regarding the pop quiz, Section L of the RFP is being revised to include additional restrictions for the pop quiz.  If an offeror submits a prime proposal and in addition is a member of another proposal team, that offeror (employee or representative) may only participate in the pop quiz question for their prime proposal.  If a contractor is a member of multiple proposal teams, no employee or representative of that contractor may participate in any FAST pop quiz question.  The RFP Section L will be revised to reflect this change.  

165.  (TT) Labor Categories 35,36, 37, 38, and 39

Computer System Analyst, Computer Scientist, Levels I and II, Database Architect/Manager, Database Specialist, and Computer Programmer have an across-the-board requirement for a Bachelor's degree.  This is excessive and drives the cost of these labor categories up needlessly.  There are many competent workers in this area without degrees.  In fact, some of the very best do not have degrees.  Other contracts (e.g., SSSC) recognize this problem and permit substitution of experience (demonstrated performance) for education.  Suggest a provision for experience replacing the degree requirements be added to at least some, if not all, of these labor categories.

Answer:  Qualifications for Computer System Analyst, Database Architect/Manager, Database Specialist, and Computer Programmer have been revised.  Six (6) years appropriate experience may be substituted for the degree requirement.

183.  (CT) M-900 c. 

As currently structured, a RESERVED award can be made to a small business (SIC 3721) where the small business may be merely a front for a large business and the majority of work could go to the large business.  This obviates the goal of awarding a substantial portion of FAST work to small business.  To guard against this, we recommend that two awards be SET-ASIDE for small business.  

Further, we recommend that the 50% small business goal for the prime be modified so that the 50% may be awarded to the collection of small businesses on the team.

Answer:  We do not agree to change “reserved” to “set-aside”.

190.  (CT) The Solicitation contains FAR Clause 52.237-3, Continuity of Services.  This clause states that the contractor agrees to “furnish phase-in training…“, and further may be required to “furnish phase-in, phase-out services for up to 90 days after this contract expires”.  Again, request that Government provide a listing of all existing contracts subject to the SCA.

Answer:  If the “Continuity of Services” clause (FAR 52.237-3) is required, it will be called out in the RFOP and resultant D/TO.  The RFP will be revised to indicate that this clause will be applicable to D/TOs as specified.  

Do not understand the request for a listing for all existing contracts subject to SCA.  

195.  (PRIC) Three geographical CONUS locations (Warner Robins ALC, Ogden ALC & Oklahoma City ALC) have been cited in the solicitation.  Does the Government expect separate rate submittals for each area, or one rate submittal that will be applicable to all 3 ALCs?  If only one set of rates for CONUS is anticipated, which DOL Wage Determination Schedule should be used for purposes of the proposal?

Answer:  We do not expect three separate rates.  One rate will be submitted that will cover work wherever it is to be performed in CONUS.  

The rates in the contract will be not to exceed rates.  Rates subject to the Service Contract Act will be increased only when it is necessary for the rate to comply with a Wage Determination. 

The Macon GA Wage Determination will be used in evaluation as a minimum for those labor categories that are covered by Service Contract Act.  In addition, these rates will also be evaluated for reasonableness in accordance with Clause M-901, paragraph 2.4.

200.  (TT / CT) Reference Section L, Paragraph 5
Due to the taxation issues OCONUS–can the Government estimate the number of personnel, type of personnel (technical expert or non-technical expert), duration of stay OCONUS, in order to provide adequate pricing?

Answer:  No, it is not possible for the Government to estimate the number of personnel, type of personnel, or duration of stay in OCONUS at the basic contract level.  

201.  (TT/PRIC) Reference Attachment 4 (Labor Categories)

At one time the Government was contemplating having a separate CLIN for each Prime’s FAST contract management.  This CLIN was considered for covering the expenses of some or all of the following positions: FAST General Manager, FAST Site Managers at each of the three ALCs, and a FAST Contracts Manager.  It appears (based on the DRAFT RFP) that the Government has decided against a program management CLIN.  In fact, Section L of the Draft includes no requirement to list key personnel and in Section M there is no explicit indication that Key personnel proposed would have any bearing on the selection process. 

Can it be assumed that all of the offeror’s FAST management team will be priced as indirect labor? 

Answer:  Contract management should be priced in accordance with your approved Disclosure Statement.  

Are any of the labor categories listed in Attachment 4 intended for the offeror’s general management personnel?

Answer: None of the labor categories are intended for the sole purpose of staffing the offeror’s post-award administration office.

Is the Government no longer considering a general management CLIN for all successful offerors? What role (if any) will proposed key personnel play in the selection process? 

Answer:  The Government will not be including general management CLINs.  Information regarding offeror’s (and team’s) key personnel is not requested, with the exception of paragraph L-903, paragraph 7.3.1.  

202.  (TT / LEGAL) Reference Section L, Paragraph 4.2.5 (Pop Quiz), page 67
The execution of the pop quiz seems to be a very good method of determining offerors’ capabilities to respond quickly to the technical challenges of typical ALC tasks. However, the current plan of administering the pop quiz may result in compromising the integrity of the source selection process. It appears from the Draft that the plan is to issue the same question to all offerors during each offeror’s oral presentation. With the oral presentations being staggered (presumably) by at least one day, the first offeror required to present their oral presentation could be in jeopardy of all other offerors obtaining insight to the pop quiz question. The restrictions described in Section 4.2.9 mitigate some of the potential for compromise, but there still exists ample opportunity for some offerors to obtain information related to the pop quiz question before entering their presentation period. For example, suppose Firm X is a subcontractor to Firm A and Firm B (Firms A and B are both FAST Prime offerors). Subcontractor X provides a representative to attend Firm A’s oral presentation and Subcontractor X provides a second representative to Firm B’s oral presentation. If it is more advantageous to Firm X to be on Firm B’s FAST Team rather than Firm A’s, then Firm X definitely has the opportunity to provide Firm B an unfair competitive advantage. 

We recommend the Government consider two alternatives to the execution of the pop quiz. 

Alternative 1. Rather than issuing the same question to all offerors, issue a unique pop quiz question for each offeror. Additionally, include a “sample” pop quiz question in the final RFP so that the first offeror presenting has an understanding of the content and composition of the pop quiz questions (without the sample question in the RFP, the offerors presenting later could again gain an unfair competitive advantage by understanding at least the architecture of the pop quiz questions). The primary negative for this alternative is the burden placed on the Government to make the degree of difficulty relatively constant for each question.

Alternative 2. Rather than holding the pop quiz during each offeror’s oral presentation, ask all offerors to come back to WR-ALC after all oral presentations are complete and execute the pop quiz at the same time. The negative for this alternative is having all offerors have to come back for a second presentation. However, given the magnitude and importance of the FAST contract, firms should not have a problem investing in a second trip to Warner Robins to complete the source selection process. 

Answer: At the present time, one pop quiz question will be used.  It is the responsibility of the offerors to protect the integrity of the process.  If an offeror submits a prime proposal and in addition is a member of another proposal team, that offeror (employee or representative) may only participate in the pop quiz question for their prime proposal.  If a contractor is a member of multiple proposal teams, no employee or representative of that contractor may participate in any FAST pop quiz question.  The RFP Section L will be revised to reflect these changes.

The RFP Section L will also be revised to reflect that all pop quiz presentations will be videotaped on a single day prior to commencement of the oral presentations.  The scheduling order for the pop quiz and the oral presentations will be determined by a random drawing after receipt of proposals.  
207.  (PRIC) Reference Attachment 5, Rate Tables, OCONUS, Other Adj. Factors 

In order to provide adequate cost–please provide further information concerning specific locations OCONUS.  Currently the proposal states:  Western Europe, Middle East, Mediterranean Region, Central/South America, and the Far East.  It is requested that the specific country names be provided.

Answer:  While we will not be listing all countries in the various regions, we will consider breaking out a few more countries that have specific needs that warrant a separate factor, if identified prior to release of the final RFP.  

Please provide any treaties / international agreements that are applicable to this procurement in accordance with DFARS 225.802-70(b)(2)(i) through (vi).

Answer:  This information will be provided as applicable at the issuance of an RFOP.  

213.  (PRIC / CT) Will relocation expenses for personnel supporting FAST tasks be considered an ODC?
Answer:  Yes.  The Government reserves the right to add a relocation CLIN at a later date should we find that the need for relocation is excessive.  

221.  (CT/TT) The Schedule lists regions of Europe, Middle East, Far East, and Central/South America where performance will be required. Can the Government be more specific and provide the country names and the information required by DFARS 225.802-70(b)(2)(i) through (vi)?

Answer:  While we will not be listing all countries in the various regions, we will consider breaking out a few more countries that have specific needs that warrant a separate factor, if identified prior to release of the final RFP.  

Information required by DFARS 225.802-7 will be requested and provided as applicable at the issuance of an RFOP.  

229.  (PRIC / CT) Reference Section H, Clause H-91, Wage Determination (IAW FAR 22.1012-1) 

Some teammate’s “Wage Scale” may be determined as a result of some “Negotiated Bargaining Unit Agreement”.  Will the Government accept this for work to be performed at the contractor’s facility in support of this Contract?

Answer:  By law the Service Contract Act and its regulatory requirements apply to non-exempt labor categories under this contract; it is not optional.  The fact that an offeror has a current collective bargaining agreement does not negate the Service Contract Act wage determination.  The wage determination is a minimum requirement, and does not prohibit a contractor from paying above the minimum.  The wage determination for the geographic locality where the work is performed will apply.  If any contractor or subcontractor has a collective bargaining agreement in effect during the base period, the wage and benefit rates of the collective bargaining agreement will become the required minimum Service Contract Act wage determination rates for the work performed under that collective bargaining agreement for the succeeding contract period, assuming the conditions set forth in the Code of Federal Regulation Title 29 Part 4, and FAR 22 1008-3 are met.  Increased labor costs required by a wage determination based on a collective bargaining agreement effective in the next period of the contract are recoverable under the price adjustment clause FAR 52.222-43.

230.  (PRIC / CT)  Reference Part 1 Schedule Section G para. 5.2.3 page 74. Service Contract Act 

Will the Government consider replacing the Service Act with other language?  The Service Act conflicts with Union pay scales at some potential FAST subcontractor’s facilities.

Answer:  By law the Service Contract Act and its regulatory requirements apply to non-exempt labor categories under this contract; it is not optional.  The fact that an offeror has a current collective bargaining agreement does not negate the Service Contract Act wage determination.  The wage determination is a minimum requirement, and does not prohibit a contractor from paying above the minimum.  The wage determination for the geographic locality where the work is performed will apply.  If any contractor or subcontractor has a collective bargaining agreement in effect during the base period, the wage and benefit rates of the collective bargaining agreement will become the required minimum Service Contract Act wage determination rates for the work performed under that collective bargaining agreement for the succeeding contract period, assuming the conditions set forth in the Code of Federal Regulation Title 29 Part 4, and FAR 22 1008-3 are met.  Increased labor costs required by a wage determination based on a collective bargaining agreement effective in the next period of the contract are recoverable under the price adjustment clause FAR 52.222-43.

233.  (TT) Regarding the Representative contract Labor Categories With Minimum Qualifications attachment (Atch 4), there does not seem to be a provision for experience to substitute for a degree.  We believe there ought to be experience equivalency that can be substituted for a formal degree.  The Engineering job descriptions are prime examples.  

Answer:  Disagree.  The variety and qualification levels associated with the labor categories have been formulated based on the Government’s best estimation of the expected D/TOs in conjunction with the FAST SOW.  We are revising the “Logistics” labor categories and several computer skill categories to substitute experience for a degree.  We will not be substituting experience for a degree in the Engineering job descriptions.   

235.  (TT) In reference to the Draft RFP, Section L, clause L-903, paragraph 4.2.5., Pop Quiz, does this paragraph mean that we are allowed to use resources, other than the seven specified in paragraph 4.2.8, if we can contact them by phone?  Secondly, can we substitute members of the seven participants during the orals, after the orals begin?

Answer:  The offeror is allowed to identify up to a total of seven representatives that will participate in the Oral Presentation, Pop Quiz, and Question and Answer session.  These representatives may participate in all sessions (see question number 164 for restriction on pop quiz participants); no substitution is allowed.  During the Pop Quiz, a telephone and fax machine will be provided by the Government for outside contact.

239.  (TT) Both the spares and repairs areas use the term “low volume” to define the LIMITED sub-category.  Is there a specific definition of “low volume”?

Answer:  No specific number has been defined for "low volume".  

241.  (PM) FAST is intended to “bring home” MIPR contracts.  However, a significant part of today’s CREP MSD budget is spent on FAST repair categories – can this work migrate to FAST?

Answer:  MSD budgeted repair can be accomplished under FAST, if the work to be accomplished is within the FAST SOW scope.  

242.  (TT) Proposal risk comes from sample tasks.  What about Mission Capability subfactors 3 and 4?

Answer:  In accordance with (IAW) paragraph 4.6. "…each Offeror shall address their proposed approach to meeting the requirements of each Mission Capability subfactor, as well as the risks of each Offeror's proposed approach in terms of mission capability/performance, cost, and/or schedule.”

244.  (PRAG) If a past performance questionnaire is submitted to a customer, and the customer refuses to respond (and instead refers the Government to CPARS) what are the consequences to the offeror?

Answer:  The Government will follow up on any questionnaire that is not provided by a customer.  There are no consequences to the offeror should your customer not submit the questionnaire.  

246.  (TT) Discuss risks in compromise of integrity of Pop Quiz.

Answer:  The Government is attempting to reduce the risk of compromise to protect the integrity of the Pop Quiz portion of the oral presentations.  The Government has considered numerous alternatives to protect the integrity of the process.  See questions 164 and 202 for our proposed revisions to the RFP in regard to the conduct of the pop quiz presentation.  

247.  (PRAG) Will Government also be questioned on past performance executed by a subcontractor (versus just the subcontractor’s prime)?

Answer:  The Government (PRAG Team) will evaluate information provided on prime contractors, teaming partners, joint venture partners, and critical first tier subcontractors.  

248.  (CT) Reference Fair Opportunity clause.  Will “logical follow-on” be used for FAST primes (or subs) that were incumbents on work formerly MIPRd through other contracting vehicles?

Answer: The  “Logical follow-on” exception will be applied to an order that had previously been awarded under FAST, not under any other contracting vehicle.   See the following excerpt from AFFARS clause 5352.216-9001, Awarding Orders under Multiple Award Contracts (MAY 1996), regarding the application of the logical follow-on exception:

     (a) All multiple award contractors shall be provided a fair opportunity to be considered for each order in excess of $2,500 pursuant to the procedures established in this clause, unless the contracting officer determines that:

(3) The task or delivery order should be issued on a sole source basis in the interest of economy or efficiency because it is a logical follow-on to an order already issued under the contract, provided that all awardees were given a fair opportunity pursuant to the procedures in this clause to be considered for the original order; or

251. (PM) Could Large Business, non-additive (non-MIPRd) contracts be added to FAST?  (I.e., LB parts of SSSC and EASES)

Answer:  FAST will not disrupt any existing contracts

252. (PM) Could 8(a) firm (or SB firm) holding a task (and a FAST contract/subcontract) roll the task onto FAST at the firm’s request/desire?

Answer:  Existing 8(a) and SDB set – asides will not be disrupted by FAST.  Tasks are not “rolled in” at a firm’s request / desire.   

255.  (CT/PRIC) Ref H-907.  Paragraph c(3).  

This paragraph seems to conflict with G-445.  Most of our current or recent AFMC contracts provide payment when on-site employees are not allowed to work due to unplanned Government directed down time such as unscheduled Presidential declared holidays, unplanned energy reduction holidays, reward days, etc.  Since we are required to compensate our employees for this time, and it is not billable under the terms of H-907, are we allowed to adjust our rates for this contingency?

Answer:  Do not understand the reference to clause G-445 here.

H-907:  The contractor will bill for work actually performed.  This does not impact how the contractor shall pay his employees.  Rates are not adjustable.  

256.  (CT) We noticed that the wage determination for Utah requires 11 holidays.  This seems to conflict with G-445(b).

Answer:  We will change clause G-445 to add “and/or as specified in the wage determination for non-exempt personnel.”

259.  (PM) FAST will not disrupt SDB/8(a) existing contracts.  What about existing SBSA contracts such as SSSC and EASES?

Answer:  FAST is an optional tool.  FAST will not disrupt any existing contracts. 

260.  (PM) The Government states that FAST will not disrupt SDB / 8(a) existing contracts.  What about existing SBSA contracts such as SSSC and EASES?  Recommend the following be added to the “Services” areas on the solicitation similar to the “spares” and “repairs” area:


“FAST will not disrupt/displace current services contracts such as SSSC and EASES.”

Answer: FAST is an optional tool.  FAST will not disrupt any existing contracts. 

We do not agree to add the above statement. 
261. (CT) Would like you to discuss the schedule from RFP to award.  Slide presentation went so fast we could not digest the information.

Answer:  See Pre-Solicitation Conference briefing charts posted on this FAST web site.  

262.  (CT) If all D/TOs are to be competed between SB and large business, what mechanism will be used to ensure that the SB awardees will receive 15% of the $7B?

Answer:  The Government has established a provision (Clause H-905) to advise contractors of the Government’s intention to award a minimum of 15% of all D/TO dollars to small businesses.  This requirement will be monitored at the SAF/AQC, SAF/IL and SAF/SB level.  If we do not meet this goal, the Ordering Procedures (clause H-906) include language that would allow the program manager / PCO for a requirement to evaluate the size status as a factor for source selection at the D/TO level.  

278.  (PM) Please show FAST contract release and award date slides and explain slip of award from Nov 00 to Feb 01.

Answer:  FAST is a program that has been politically visible since its inception.  We had initially anticipated releasing the RFP in the May 00 time frame.  However, officials at the SAF and DOD level were required to review our strategy.  This coordination process was welcome, but caused a delay in the release of the RFP, and the award.   See the Pre-Solicitation Conference briefing slides on this web site for the schedule charts.  

279.  (PM) Surcharge – No surcharge for AF users.  What about other Services (Navy, Army)?

Answer:  FAST is not (at this time) available for use by other Services, unless the Air Force maintains program management responsibility for a joint system with that Service. 

285.  (CT) In briefing, it was stated that SDB future and present workload would not be placed on FAST.  What tools will be placed on contract to ensure that future 8(a) or SDB work will not be run through FAST, but would be reviewed by Small Business Office?

Answer:  No tool will be placed in the solicitation / contract.  This is the Government’s responsibility to ensure that these requirements are not placed under FAST.  

288.  (TT) In the labor categories, there is no mention of the categories normally associated with ALC logistics support and to which most services tasks not specifically engineering in nature will refer.  Those tasks of an Equipment Specialist, Item Manager, Production Manager, and Logistics Program Manager are not contained in any of the stated categories.  Also, the SOW doesn’t appear to include this type of work.  Are these tasks excluded from FAST?

Answer:  No, these tasks are within the scope of FAST.  The "logistician" labor category covers many of the ALC logistics support activities.

289.  (TT/CT) Para 4.5.1. of Section L-903 of the RFP 

Requires that large business offerors describe the extent of the offeror’s proposal commitment to use small disadvantaged business (SDB) and to describe the complexity and variety of work to be performed by SDBs.  How will you evaluate that the work assigned to SDBs is meaningful?  After contract award, how will you track this?  How do you assess the quality of work being done by SDBs?

Answer:   Whether or not the work is “meaningful” is a function of how complex and varied the work is and is dependent on the capabilities of SDBs.  We do not anticipate “non-meaningful” work under FAST.  A post-award tracking method will not be imposed.

291.  (PRAG) There is a requirement to identify 50 relevant contracts during the past two years.  Does this apply to small businesses?

Answer:  This will now read “up to a maximum of 50 relevant contracts”.  Yes, this does apply to small businesses.  

295.  (CT) Since R2CSR is the model, will their approach be used where large tasks are competed then Engineering Authorizations (EAs) are used to direct effort to specific subcontractors or the prime?

Answer:  Contracting officers issuing orders under FAST will adhere to the rules set forth in the “Fair Opportunities” clause and the Ordering Procedures clause of the contract.  No effort will be “directed” without justification that competition will not occur based on one of the exemptions to AFFARS 5352.216-9001.

298.  (CT) L-903, Table 2.2. 

Specifies 15 pages each for the Subcontracting Plan Addendums.  Paragraph 4.5.1. specifies “this plan shall include two addendums:  the page limit on the addendums is 15 pages.”  Please clarify that it is 15 pages for each addendum.

Answer:  Yes, as Table 2.2 specifies, 15 pages for each addendum.

300.  (TT) L-903, Table 4.4., Team Structure Matrix.  

(a) Please clarify whether there is one column heading “Manpower Services”, or two column headings, “Manpower” and “Services”.  

(b) Please clarify if the row heading “Hydraulic/Pneumatic Software” maybe should be two row headings, “Hydraulic/Pneumatic” and “Software”.

(c) Please clarify that it may be proper to interpret that some of the blocks are not meaningful such as the block representing the intersection of “Software” and “Spares”, and that we may indicate that they are not applicable in our proposal submission.

(d) Table 2.2. specifies a limit of 25 pages for Subfactor 3 to include the matrix.  Section 4.4. includes the following sentences:  “The offeror shall submit a Team Structure Matrix and a Team Structure Plan.  - - - The plan is limited to a page count of 25.”  Please clarify that the Team Structure matrix is not included in the 25-page limit.

Answer:  
a.  There is one column heading, “Manpower Services”.

b.  There are two row headings, “Hydraulic/Pneumatic” and “Software”.

c.  All blocks in the Team Structure Matrix shall be filled based on the scope of work defined in the FAST SOW.  We will not provide specific scenarios of how the matrix could be completed.  

  d.  Paragraph 4.4 will be revised to clarify that the Team Structure Matrix is included in the 25-page limit. 

301.  (TT) Oral Presentation.  Paragraph 4.1.2. 

States:  “Each offeror will be scheduled to provide an oral presentation of the subfactors 1 and 2 referenced in Section 4.2.4.  Paragraph 4.2.4. states:  “All offerors shall present solutions to each sample task in relation to each of the following subfactors.”  Please clarify whether a presentation is expected of the subfactors independently, and in addition, a presentation of each sample task in relation to each subfactor.

Answer:  The offeror shall present solutions to each sample task in relation to the subfactors to be evaluated.  

303.  (TT) There seems to be a lack of consistency in the identification and definition of labor categories:

a.  Many of the labor categories seem to be almost identical and duplicate one another.  For example:

1.  Engineer, Quality Assurance and Engineer, Reliability and Maintainability

2.  Engineer, Reliability and Maintainability and Engineer, Test

3.  Engineer, Mechanical and Engineer, Mechanical Ground Vehicle

4.  Engineer, Industrial and Engineer, Manufacturing

5.  Journeyman Engineer and Engineer, Logistics

b.  It is not apparent in some cases what functions are expected and where the work would be performed, e.g. the Foundry Worker.  The key individual in the Foundry is the model or mold maker.  There are also several other specialties that perform work in a foundry.  Will the individual be assigned to operate the Government foundry?

c.  There are a number of engineering specialties that typically are supported by specialist technicians.  These engineers do not have the following comparable technicians:

1.  Materials Technician

2.  NDI Technician

3.  Test Technician

Answer:  

a) The variety and qualification levels associated with the labor categories have been formulated based on the Government's best estimation of the expected D/TOs in conjunction with the FAST SOW.

b) The work location will be specified in individual D/TOs.  The AF has foundry operations, so work at a Government location and operation of the Government foundry might be required.

c) The "Engineering Technician" labor category covers these types of technicians.  

304.  (PRIC) Reference: L-903 Information to Offerors (ITO) and Instructions for Proposal Preparation, paragraph 5.2.3. and 5.2.5.  

The draft RFP provides area wage determinations for Macon, GA, Oklahoma City, OK and Utah statewide covering non-exempt SCA classifications proposed in Offeror’s Volume II Cost/Price Proposal. Wage determinations for Macon, GA and Oklahoma City, OK have a minimum of 10 holidays, Utah wage determination has a minimum 11 holidays.  Health and welfare benefit requirement as stated for all three wage determinations is $ 1.63 an hour, or $ 65.20 a week or $ 282.53 a month.  

Section B Attachment 5 Labor Rate Schedule requests only one labor rate.  

Please confirm the correct wage determinations are attached to the draft RFP.

Answer:  Yes.  At this time, wage determinations are included only for the OO-ALC, OC-ALC, and WR-ALC areas; however performance under FAST is not limited to these areas.  Those RFOPs which identify work to be performed that is covered by the Service Contract Act outside of these three areas will include the Wage Determination which is applicable to that area.  

Offerors will be required to perform Task Orders within CONUS that are not located at one of the three wage determination locations. 

· Is the Offeror to select one of the three wage determinations as the basis of proposed non-exempt labor rates?

No – see below.

· Propose non-exempt base labor rates for each of the locations indicated by attached wage determinations?

No – see below.  


· Propose a combination of the three wage determinations as the basis of proposed non-exempt labor rates?

No – see below.

· What non-exempt base labor rates are to be used for Alaska and Hawaii?

Base labor rates are as determined by the offeror.  The offeror will also propose an OCONUS factor for Alaska and Hawaii.  Wage Determinations do apply to Alaska and Hawaii.  

· How will rates for locations other than Macon, Oklahoma City and Utah be developed?

See below.  

Answer:  We do not expect three separate rates.  One rate will be submitted that will cover work wherever it is to be performed in CONUS.  

The rates in the contract will be not to exceed rates.  Rates subject to the Service Contract Act will be increased only when it is necessary for the rate to comply with a Wage Determination.

The Macon GA Wage Determination will be used in evaluation as a minimum for those labor categories that are covered by Service Contract Act.  In addition, these rates will also be evaluated for reasonableness in accordance with Clause M-901, paragraph 2.4.

305.  (TT) Is this contract restricted to Air Force managed weapon systems, support systems, subsystems and components or will other Department of Defense services and Federal agencies be allowed to use this service?


Answer: The scope of this contract covers the sustainment of Air Force managed systems.  FAST is not (at this time) available for use by other Services, unless the Air Force maintains program management responsibility for a joint system with that Service.  

314.  (PRIC) Which Wage Determination (WD) should be used as the basis for the proposed labor rates to be included in the Rate Tables, ATCH 5?

Answer:  One rate will be submitted that will cover work wherever it is to be performed in CONUS.  

The rates in the contract will be not to exceed rates.  Rates subject to the Service Contract Act will be increased only when it is necessary for the rate to comply with a Wage Determination.

The Macon GA Wage Determination will be used in evaluation as a minimum for those labor categories that are covered by Service Contract Act.  In addition, these rates will also be evaluated for reasonableness in accordance with Clause M-901, paragraph 2.4.

